
UNITED NATIONS 

ECONOMIC 
AND 

G.!Ei~ERLU. 

E/CN.6/SR.lll 
3 September 1952 

~GLISH SOCIAL COUNCIL Original: ENGLISH and FRENCH 

Dual Di§tribution 

COl·.J:..ISSION ON 'l'HC STATUS OF vl)l-JEN 

Sixth Session-

DJ-iARY R-.:.CORD OF THE ONE HUNDReD AND ELEVENTH fllEETING 

held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva, 
on Saturday, 29 l'Iarch 1952, at 10 a.m. 

Educational opportunities !or women (item 7 of 
the a&enda) (continued): . 
. 

(b) Study of the report of the Inte~ational Labour 
Office on vocational training of women 
(l/CN.6/l78, ijcN.6/!..64, E/CN.6/L.66). (continued) 

'(a) Study of the progress report prepared by UN~SCO 
in .collaboration with the Seeretary~neral of 
the United Nations (E/CN.6/191, ~/CN.6/L.65). 
(resumed from the precdding meeting)_ 

2. Status of women in public law (item S of. the agenda) 
( r\:)sumed from the lOSth meeting): 
Consideration of supplementary reports on sactio~s 
C and E of part I oft he qu~stionnaire on the legal 
status and treatment of Women, basad on such 
additional information as may be supplled by 
Governments (E/CN .. 6/L.63/Rev.l) 

3. Equal pay for equal work for men and WQmen workers 
(item 8 of the agenda): 

Report on the action. taken by tho IntiSrnational Labour 
Conference at its 34th se$sion h~ld ih June 1951, 
{E/CN .6/1791~/CN .6/L.69.1 fJCN.6/L. 70) 4. 

4 -ll 

. 
l3 -18 

18-24 



~/CN .6/SR.lll 
page 2 

Present.: 

Chairman: M.rs. LEF AUCHEUX (France) 

Hembers: 

l·dss LUTZ 

hrs. NY~m 

l'l.I's, NlNIKuV A 

Mrs • FIGU.lttOA 

Miss Ti.>lil~G 

lviiss l>'WUS 

Mrs. de !•OFFICIAL 

Mrs, FIROUZ 

Miss PET:tiTIE.R 

Mrs. ROSS 

Be gum Fida HASSAN 

·Miss KALINOHSKA 

Mrs, POPOVA 

Hiss SUT&li.LiJID 

Mrs , GOLDI-'iAN 

· Brazil 

Burma 

Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic 

Chile 

China 

Cuba 

Dominican Republic 

Iran 

Netherlands 

New Zealand 

Pakistan 

Poland 

Union of Soviet Socialist Republica 

United Kingdom of Great Brltain and' 
Northern Ireland . 

United Statas of America 

Representatives of seecialized agencies~ 

International Labour Organization 

United Nations Educational, 
Scientific and Cultural 

Mise FAIRCHilD 

Or ganizati.on Miss D.AS 

Representatives of Non-Governmental Organizations: 

Category A 

vlorld Federation of Trade· Unions 

Category B 

Catholic Int~rnational Union for 
Social Service 

International Association of Penal) 

International Bureau for the 
Unification of Penal Law 

) 
 ) 

' ) 

.hrs. CHIOST.t.HGI 
l-trs. NOCE 

Mrs. SOUDAN 

Mrs. RONNICI.\NO 



International Conference of 
C:tnolic Charities (replacing 
Caritas Internntionalio 

International Council of 1·Jomen 

Int~rnational Federal ot Business 
ana Professional Women 

International Federation ot Friends 
of Young l*.Ulllen 

International Federation ot 
University Women 

E/CU .6/S..~ .. ll~ 
pagu 3 

hiss OST.&l.TAG 

hiss van ErJXlHBN 
ltlrS. J.-.Ch.SW-HAIGHT 

:Mrs. HYl<lER 
hl.ss TOMLIN$0N 

!<1rs. FI..:::CHTl!R 

International UI)ion for Child lj-el.fare Hiss FR.tJ~w~::>TZIN 

Int~rnational Union of Catholic 
women 1 a League 

Liaison Committee of Women's 
International Organizations 

Pax Rorn.ma 

vlorld Is Women Is Christian 
Temperance Union 

World Union for Progressive Judaism 

Register 

St. Joan's International Social and 
Political Alliance 

Secretariat: 

:Hiss w.lBER 

hi&B B.i.RRY 
Miss van E&il1.t::N 
Hrs. HYf.;ER 

lviiss ARCHINiJtD 

11rs. CHII.IX-CONSTANTIN 

Lady NJ..TH;.N ot CHUR'l' 

Hiss CHJiLLON:ffi 
Miss HILLS YOUNG . 

Mrs. Tenison-Woods 

Hrs. Grinberg-Vinaver 

Representative of the Secretary-General 

Secretary to the Commission 



i./CN.6/SR.lll 
page 4 

WUC;.TIOO/J. OPPORTUNITI..::.S lt~OR .-JOl-!.LN (itetl 7 of the agenda) (continued): 

(b) Study of the rdport of the International Labour Office on vocational training 
of women (E/CN.6/l78, E/CN.6/L.64, E/CN.o/L.66) (continued) 

Miss KALINOwSKI~ (Poland) said that the Polish delegation had always 

supported the principle of equal pay for equal work f<Jr ruen and women. In i t1 

broad aspects, that question was connected with the question of the accese ot 

women to all kinds of work, including work which in many countrios was still 

considered a& the exclusive prerogative of men, the intention being to keep the 

vocational attninmenta of women at the lowt3st possible level and to pay women leoa 

and exploit them mor~, in the intarests of the employers. The !act that 

participation in skilled work_ in industry improved the qualifications and cultural 

standards of women was the reason why employers preferred to keep them out or 

skilled trades. Skilled work was of greati.:r value to tho individual than 

unskilled work, and in ?oland it was the women who benafited from participation in 

it. lio one could reasonably allega the:t stilled work was harder than unskilled 

work. In Poland, every effort was made to provide mechanical applicancea to 

reduce physical effort to a minimum. Skilled work in industry, while requiring 

greater knowledge, demanded no greater expenditure ,of physical anergy than the 

-simple jobs which it was generally considt)red women could best do. She could 

not ae~ why people who objected to women doing e~illed work did not at the same 

ti•;,e pity those woruen engaged in unskilled jobs where, as she demonstrated by 

ref~rence to jasmlne pickers and laundry workers, women had to carry extremely 

heavy loads. How -well woman could do the work of blacksmiths, turners, fitters 

and the like wc.s aniply shown by their activities in the vocational schools ot 
her countr,y: schools which trained people for engineering, building and other 

trades, and which had over ;.25,000 \iozuen students, equal to two-fifths of the total 

attendanee. Tbose wo.IDI;3n students cama from working or farming families, and, 

after completing their s~condary educ~tion, took up vocational training While at 

work. Young workers we1·e paid the stand'-trd rattJs while attending school, while 

adults attended evening classee. It would be noted that, as a result of the 

increased l;;echaniz.:.tion of a~;.riculturti, skilled women workers were being enabled 

to devote considerable leisure to recreation and social and cultural pursuits, 

It would not be all~ged that driving an ogricultural machine was harder work than 

ordinary, unmochanized ploughing. 



E/Ci\ .~/.::iR.lll 
page 5 

The CHAiiihJiN reminded the .-olish representati vo that at the prectlding 

m_eeting the Commission.had decided to limit to ~en minut0s the time allowed to 

membt3rs of the Commission for their statements on th:. i tern of the agenda at present 

under discussion. Of course, representatives were perfectly free to submit any 

supplementary remarks in writing, if they considered that they had not been able 

to speak in sufficient detail owing to that limitation. Comments submitted in 

'writing bY .. non-goverrunental organiz tions should not, however, exceed 2,000 words. 

J.1iss KALINOWSKA (Poland) said that she would try to be brief, but was 

not sure thfit the Commission had decided to lirait trn time of speakers. 

The CHAIRMAN said that the dectsion to limit tha time of each speaker 

had been formally taken by vote, and that it was her duty to enforce that decision. 

Mrs. POPOVA (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics), spea\ing to a point 

of order, said that the Chair.man had laid down that representatives could speak 

tor from ten to fifteen minutes, and urged that everyone be given the opportunity 

ot speaking for that length of time. 

The CHAlRlv.AhN said tnat her memory was perfectly clear on th£3 point, and 

that the proposal put to the vote had been that the time of ntembers of the 

Com.mi.Bsion should be limited to ten minutes, and that of repres~ntatives of non:-

governmental organizations to five rilinut~s. That d~cision was reported in the 

summary record of · the llOth meetinf,.l) 

Miss KALINO~SKA (Poland) could not understand why the Chair.man had called 

.her to order, because she had betin r~ferring in her stat~ent to conditions in 

Poland. 

The CHAIRM.AN explained that .. she was asking the Polish representative to 

bring her stat~ment to an end not because she was giving exarr.plt>s of opportunities 

for vocational training f ,)r women in Poland, but becat:.so the decision taken by 

the Commission nt the preceding ne eting must be enforced. 

~dss KALINOWSKA (Poland), rasunung hGr statem~nt, said that in Poland 

there was no qu~stion of forcing women into industrial work; neit~r was thdre any 

question of obliging them to go to school, But things had changed since the time .. . 

when, in tht: interests of certain groups of individuals, ;;;vr::ry ~;ffort had been 

made to pr~vent women gettinL education. The opportunities now afforded to women 

in Polandwere very considerable, and their lot was not Qt all to be pitied. 

1) See document ~/CN.6/SR.ll0, ~ge 22. 



E/CN .6/SR .111 
page 6 

They entered industry because they wanted to~ and incurred no penalties if thoy 

d~clined to do so. Conditions might not be ideal in Poland, but woman there now 

had an opportunity of obtaining adequate instruction end were· seeking it in great 

numbers. 

f.'1rs. POPOVA (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) said th~t vocational 

guidance and t~chnical education for women deserved the closest., attention because 

they were closely connected with general education and political and economic 

equality. The International Labour Office had drawn attantion to difficulti~s it had 

encountered in its W5~k, caused by the multiplicity of legisaltive systems, but 

that obstacle could be overcome if the information subnd tted by governments was 

proparly analysed. It was clear from the discussion that in certain countries 

wo~en were being discrinQnated against, particularly in the field of vocational 

guidance. In many countriee, reactionary elewents were endeavouring to show tr~t 

there was no need for women to enter skilled trades. Experience, however, had 

disproved thot contantion, and women were playing an ev~r-growing part in economic 

life. The deterioration of living standards made it necessary to employ them 

more and more. 

According to the International Labour Office, th0 number of women engaged in 

industry had recently declined. That was attributable to the fact that the 

growth of unemployment in certain countri~s affected women first, because they were 

employed on work that W8S less skilh'd than that done by men. J\.s the Chilean 

representative had rightly pointed out, in many countries, industrialized and 

under-developed alike, a number of restrictions had been imposed on the access of 

women to technical and vocational education. That was due to the absence of 

equality between men and women, and to the fact that employars preferred unskilled 

labour because it was cheaper, All that went to shuw how discrimination in the 

economic field was reflectdd in the difficulties women encountered in seeking 

vocational training. 

In the Soviet Union, wom~n made up 40 per. cent of the total labour force. 

They were also busily engaged in educating the country's children. The granting 

of full equality with men in the economic, political and social spheres had made 

it possible for women to participate fully in all types of activity - induetr.r, 

a&riculture, scientific research, the arts and so on. Hundreds of thousands of 



E/CN .6/SR .111 
·page 7 

women took special technical and practical courses, and were inspired and assisted 

by the spirit of socialist competition that prevail~d. ~qual pay and child-care 

and ot~r facilities n~de it possibl~ for women to qualify for the skilled 

occupations they deserved to ent<:r, and they e,rasped their opportunities unprompted 

by any sort of threat. When they had completed thGir training they took their part 

alongaide men in some vf the country's immense development projects, where there 

was notable co-opclration be~w8en the sexes. For seven years. now, women b.1d been 

proudly participating, on a highly technical Inechanized basis, in the work of the 

large agricultural, hydro-electric and irrigation projects that were turning 

deserts into rich, arable land capable of supporting many millions of people. 

The question of technical education was most important, and it should be 

approached in such a manner as to lead to the drafting of appropriate recommendations 

to a nurrtbcr of countries to ensure that the women of those countries were able to 

obtain the tvchnical education they now lacked, 

Niss CHIOST::RGI ( ~~orld Federation of Trade Unions), speaking at the 

invitation of the CH.h.lRhnN, said that she would limit h.:;rself to comments on the 

report of the Inturnational Labour Office; how~v0r, she intanded to submit to 

memb~rs of th~ Commission in writing the inforr.1ation on which some of those 

comn1.:mts were based. 

In the first place sht! noted th&t the report in qu<.:stion (.C/Ci~.6/178) failed 

to supply certain information which would have wade it possible to for.m a general 

idea of the whole problem of vocational training for women, to assess the situ~tion 
' . 

more accurat'.:dy, and hence to fonalili.t te appropria ta practical proposals. In a 

r€;port of that kind, and in sir.rl.lar studies which mighc. even~uall.y be undertaken, 

a comparison should be made, on the basis of reliable figures, between the actual 

extent of the participation of nten and women respectively in vocational and 

technical aducation. Such infor.mation would also make it possible to idehtify the 

causes of certain variations in the figurus. For instance, tho offic:i.al figures 

showed that in the Unitad Statas of America the number of women who had obtained 

a vocational training diploma had decreased, by comparison with the num~r of men, 

since the second world war. Th~ figures also showed that in that same count~ 

the number of women taking cours0s at vocational, cou~ercial and industrial 

schools had been considerably less in 194g than in 1930. hcreover, the report . ' 

submitted by the International Labour Office to the 33rd Inte~national·Labour 



E/CN.6/SR.lll 
page 8 

Conference had recof1lized the prou.e'cs mad.e in the vocatiooal training ot t«>men in 

Poland, Czechoslovakia and China, and she considered that those advances .r4ght 

have been COIIlluentQd on at greater length and ttw reasons for them explain8!i• In 
. . . 

any case, such progress contradicted the United Kingdom r~presentative•a assertion 

at the preceding Jueeting that the absence of inf_ormation on vocational training 

for women in Non-Self-Governing Territories was due, not to any voluntary omission, 

but to the fact that the si tuc:otion in those territories was simiiar to that in 

self-goveming countries in the same areas. Owing to the absence of such information 

from the report of the International Labour Office, it was impossible to call 

certain countries to account for their unpardonable dilatoriness in the field of 

vocational training for women. It was likewise impossible to study the causes of 

such backwardness or the reasons fur the progress achiev3d in the same field by 

certain other countries. She noted that it was stated on page 20 or the report. 

that: "There wae still ~ · tendency in many cases to consider the_ presence .Lot 
girls and wo"!!O!i} in the lab· ... ur market -as a t.<Jnporary circumstance." Indeed, the 

report seemed to suggest that female labour was to be regarded purely as a · 

supplementary factor in the labour situatio~. She did not, however, share 'that 

view, and agreed with the Chilean r~pres~ntative that f~uale labour was tending 

1.1ore and more to bdCome a permanent feature of economic life, and establishing 

itself in all branches of activity. The Commission shQuld take account of that 

fundamental truth in any resolution it r.Ught adopt on the subject, and should also 

:include a recoinr.lendation that govemponts ensure that women en.joyud the eemo tight 

to work as men on conditions ot equality. 

horeover1 it was not enough to.request governments to promote vocational 

training for women. ~vtJry country should be ur6ed to a·llocate larger sums for . 
the establishment of training sch?ols where girls could receive appropriate 

' · 

technical education. Finally, goverrunen\.s should be ~quested to enact leglslation 

to make apprenticeship compulsory, and to compel employers to organize such 

apprenticeship for girls as well as boys under trade union supervision. According 

to the United Kingdom :representative, the problem was one which, coneemed a very 

large nwnber of countries. 

Governments should be urged to promote the establishment of joint coamdttees 

of representatives of trDde uni~n organi:.:;ation.e and_ of 1«>rmn• e organizatioca to 



E/CN .6/SR .lll 
page 9 

implement the measur .• s r~comme~~d by the Commission and ... o eubn:it concrl3te 

proposals to gover.ruaents concerning the sup~rvision of the execution of 

approntic~ship and vocational training progranmes and the aministration or the 

whole · system set up on thd.t basis. The ~'iorld Federation of Trade Unions would 

submit written pro)osals on the subject to the Commission. 

The CHiilli.hAN pointed out that the rules of procedure made no provision 

·tor a non-governmental organi~ation to submit a proposal direct to the Co~~nission. 

It could, howev~r, arrange for such proposal to be submitted through the delegation 

of a country J;,ember of the Commission. 

¥dss ChALLON~R (St. Joan's Int~rnational Social and Political Alliance), 

speaking at the invitation of the CHAI~~iliN, said that her organization believed that 

women should have an equal opportunity with n1en of finding employment, and that 

they should enjoy equal protection from exploitation. 

In some countries trade union regulations barred women from apprenticeship to 

certain skilled trades, for exaruple, the textile, printing and bUilding trades 

in the United Kingdom. An investigation into that situation might w~ll be carried 

out by the IntE;rnational Labour Uffice, whose report she comniended, 

hiss T.:>.C:NG (China) observed that tha reference to China in the report of 

the International Labvur Office was to Communist China, and not to Nationalist 

China. That being the case, she would draw the ati:.ention of r.Jambers to the fact 

that, after Communist China had entared the Korean ~fnr at the end of 1950, a large 

nqmber of wowen workers bad been engaged in Shanghai and ;in Lanchuria on arnament 

work, and, toteth.ar with tht::ir malt! comrades, had been forced to offer their 

services for less pay a~ a so-called contribution to anti-h.me'rican aid to the 

Korean mov~tent. All the work~rs had been called to meetings and obliged, under 

threat of denunciation as reactionaries, to follow the dictates. of their leaders. 

Mrs. GOLD~UU~ (United dtdtds of America) observed that voc&t;ional training 

courses in the Unitsd dtates of America were <Jstablished and paid for by the federal 

and state gov.:::ruments within the framework of the c;eneral education system •. They 

were open +,o full-time and part-time women workers, and to women seeking to prepare 

themselvt>s f~Jr employment. There had been a considerable incre:lse in the number 

of women attending schools und in the number of women in industry. 



E/CN.6/SRolll 
pne;e 10 

As to the canpariaon between skilled and unskilled workers, surely much . ~ 

skilled ~ork in st~el mills, a branch of industry in which the Sovidt Union prided 

itsdf, l'JaS inevitably harder and heavier than any unskilled work. It was somewhat 

startling to hear some speak~rs relate the question of compY!sory labour to that of 

compulsory education~ particularly when the general trend was towards freedom in 

education. In the Soviet Union, forced educatio~ was becoming the law of the 

land, and was being closely integrated with the economic programme. There was 

also ample documt;jntary evidence of furc<:ld lab ,ur operations in that country, and 

it was an insult to the intelligence to claim that forced labour brought women the

juy of being able to choose their occupation for themselves. They were actually . 
forced into mines and heavy industry, where they were doing much hard work for 

the benefit of the Soviet Union ~conomy. 

In the field of vocational train~ng, the Soviet Uniun was faced with the 

prohleLi of resistance on t11e part of graduat<Js, many of whom did not like to be 

pressed into the service of certain State enterprises; but refusal was punishable 

by a term of imprisonment. 

She believed in vocntional training programmes for women1 but there must be 

no compulsion on then to make use of them. The provision of adequate vocational 

traininc faciliti8s and fre.;J access to it w:mld enable women to choose their 

occupation freely. 

:tv1rs. SCJUIJAN (Cat.10lic International Uaion for Social Service), speaking 

at the invitation of the CHAIRLAN 1 said that she would like to dwell on a point 

in the International Labour Officu 1 s r:port which was of special interest to her 

orgQni~ation, which was interested in the st&tus cf women not only from the 

th0oretical, but also from the practical point of view, and whose members 

represented half of the social servic0 schools in the entire world. The point 

related to the vocational training of womer: i.n under-developed countries. Earlier 

in thu session, the U ited States representative had v~ry rightly stressed the 

importance of the dev.alopment of handicrafts in such coun+,ries. The Catholic 

Inturnational Union for Social s~rvice shared that representative's concern, and, 

while not wishing tv liruit women's activities to the home, would further like to 

str ss the need fJr perfecting the training of wumen in domestic economy. 

~efe r~nce to BJlgian statistics, for example, showed that 68 per cent of th~ net 



 E/GN .6/&1~11l 
page 11 

na~ional income we~t to meet household expenseG. Since the fmnily budget ~as 

controlled by women, it was essential that they should know ho~ to makd the bes~ 

use of tne r~eources at the disposal of the family group. It was superfluous to 

:;cint out that the rationalization ot household expenditure had a bearing not only 

on family life but.also on the national ~conarny, so that the problem fitted 1n 
p~r.fectly with on~ of the declared aims of the United Nations, nam.ely, the 

improvement of £;lConomic conditioos throughollt the world. 

The CHAII~l-.Lilli declared closed tha general discussion on item 7 (b) of the 

at,enda,· and invited the Cou'llllission to conSider the draft rusolutione submitted

9n that item. 

~.iss KALINOif0KA (Poland) said that the .. ')olieh delegation would sponsor 

the proposals put for\iard by the repres~tative of the World Federation ot Trade 

Tlnions anu move the.:n as amendments to the Chilean draft reoolution (£/CN .6/1.64). 

The CHA1~·~ proposed that pending the circulation of the Polish 

runendruents, the Commission should consider the draft resolution (~/CN.6/L.65) 

sul:udtted by the liew Zealand representative on tne progruss l'eport of UNb3CO, . 
It was so agreed. 

(a) Study of the progress report prepared by UN~CO in collaboration 'dth the 
Socretar-,t-Genaral of the Unitvd Nations (~/CN.6/191, E/CN .6/1.65) (resumed from 
the preceding m..::eting) • 

.Mrs. ROSS (New Zealand) said that, having regard to the very full 

e:qJression of views in the gen~ral discussion, she did not feel it necessary to 

6Xpctiate on hex; draft resolution, which was sclf-e.xplan6tory. After referring to 

certain paragraphs of the preamble, she pointed out that the paragraph beginning 

"Notes how:Jver that the report of m~E.:>CO do~s not include ••••• 11 had been inserted 

.because in many countries no schools existed, and it was desirable to make sure 

that there was no legal linpedim.ent to their establishment. 

l'lrs. FIGU..:iliOA (Chile) wished to know wheth"' r the Commission would 

request the Secretary-G~n~ral to continue to coliaborate with the Dir~ctor~eneral 

of the United Nations £ducational, ~cientific and Cultural Organization (UN~CO). 



:Z/CN. 6/SR.lll 
page 12 

Mrs.aoss (New Zealand) had no objection to the passage referred to by 

the Chilean representative being re-drafted in that sense. 

The CHAIRMAN explained that the draft resolution submitted by the New 

Zealand representative used the same terms as the resolution adopted by the 

Co~~ussion at the fifth session. 

Mrs. POPOVA (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) f~lt that the point 

raised by the Chilean representative deserved full consideration. In her 

(Mrs. Popova's) view, it was neither necessary nor desirable to repeat auto­

matically the phraseology of a previous resolution, 

The CHAIRMAN explained that the paragraph in fact recommended the 

continuance of action along the lines indicated 1n the resolution adopted at the 

fifth session. 

Mrs. GRINBERG-viNAVER, Secretary to the Commission, pointed out that the 

Commission could only address a direct request to the Secretary-General of the 

United Nations. Any request to the Director-General of a specialized agency must 

be made through the Economic and Social Council, otherwise it would not be possible 

to give effect to the resolution. 

Mrs. NOVIKOVA (Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic) asked if there 

had previously been collaboration between the Secretary-General and the Director­

General of UNESCO. If so, there was surely no need to refer to it. If there 

had been no collaboration hitherto, the point· should be made clear in the text .. 

Miss SUTHERLAND (United Kingdom) said that 'the form of 'WOi-ds employed 

had been used before, and there was no need to seek the specific ~pproval of the 

Economic and. Social Council. If a different form were used on the present 

occasion the impression might be created that the Director-General of UNESCO had 

been reluctant to collaborate with the Secretary-General on the matters mentioned 

in the draft resolution. As members were well aware UNESCO had been most co­

operative in. meeting the desires of the Commission. 

Mrs. FIGUEROA (Chile) thought it extremely important 1 when trying to .. 

establish collaboration between the United Nations and a specialized agenc,y1 to 

follow the proper procedure. She thought the :-:.ght i1C.:J 1·:ould be to invite · 

the Secretary-General to continue to seek the collaboration of the Director­

General of UNESCO, and saw no reason why the request should not be made in the 

form of a recommendation to the Economic and Social Col.Ulcil, and not direct •• 



E/CN.6/SR.lll 
page 13 

The CHAIRMAN said that that proposal amounted to an amendment to the 

New Zealand draft resolution and asked the representa~ive of Chile to draft a 

suitable text. 

Mrs. FIGUEROA (Chile), following comments by Mrs. GRnJBERG-viNAVER, 

Secretary to the Commission, and the CHAIRMAN, suggested that the ope~in~ words of 

the penultimate paragraph of the New Zealand draft resolution might be amended to 

read: 

"Requests the Secretary-General to continue to seek the· collaboration 
· of the Director-General of the United Nations Educational, Scientific 
and Cultural Organization····" · 

Mrs. ROSS (New Zealand) accepted the Chilean amendment. 

The New Zealapd draft resoluti~ (E/CN.6/L.65) was adopted, as amendgd, Br· 
' 1) . 

13 votes to none, 'd th 3 abstentions. 

2. STATUS OF WOMEN IN PUBLIC LAW (item 5 of the agenda) (resumed from the 
108th meeting ) : 

Consideration of supplementary reports on sections C and E of part I of tlle 
questionnaire on the legal status and treatment of women, based on such 
additional information as may be supplied by governments. 

Draft resolution submitted jointly by.the representatives of the United States 
of America, the Netherlands and Brazil (E/CN.6/L.63/Rev.l) · . 

Mrs. FIGUEROA (Chile) asked for some, explanation :why the particular 

form of words used in the third paragraph of the joint draft resolution (E/CN.6/ 

1.63/Rev.l) submitted by the representatives of the United States of America, the 

Netherlands and Brazil had been chosen. She wished in particular to know whether 

the authors wore requesting the Secretariat to provide a simplified summary ot 
the replies by governments to sections C and E of part I of the questionnaire, or 

whether they were requesting that such a s~~ry should deal with nationality, 

fiscal laws and political rights as well. 

Mrs. GOLDMAN (United States of America) presumed t,hat the proposed non­

technical summary on discrimination against women 1:1::mld cover the information. 

obtained on the basis of the 'Whole of part I of the questionnaire. Summaries 

1) For full text of the New Zealand draft resolution as adopted, see the report 
of the Commission on its sixth session (E/22C8 - E/CN.6/204) 1 paragraph ;s. 



E/CN.,6/SR.lll 
page 14 

comparing the situation in different countries and sh~dng the progress achieved 

provided the Commission wl th a most useful instrument. She did not think that 

the suggested publication would in any way duplicate any of the work l'ihich l'taa 

already being done in the field in question. 

Mrs. GRINBERG-VINAVER~ Secretary to the Co~~ssion, asked whether the 

United States representative wished the Secretariat to prepare a further pamphlet . 
on the question of nationality. If so, she would like to lmow in what "tray it was 

to differ from the previous one. She referred members of the Commission to 

paragraphs 65 (a) and (b) of the Commission's report on its fifth session 

(E/1997/Rev.l). 

Hrs. GOLDl-iAN (United States of America) said the.t there was no need to 

repeat the excellent information given in the pamphlet on the nationality of 

married women. She assumed that the proposed summary would emphasize new topics. 

Miss SUTHERLAND (United Kingdom) asked whether it was intended to 

include in the pa~phlot information about political rights. She agreed with the 

United States representative that there was no need to summarize once again the 

information on the nationality of married women, unless the non-governmental 

organizations felt that such a summary -would be useful. It wae always difficult 

to present material adequately in summary form. 

The CHAI~~ understood that the aim of the pamphlet would be to present 

~ore simply the information transmitted to the Secretary-General in reply to the 

questions dealt with in documents E/CN.6/156/Add.l and 2 and E/CN.6/157/Add.l and 2. 

Mrs. GRINBERG-VINAVER, Secretary to the Commission, added that the 

l~evised text of the pamphlet on political rights of women \'Tas in course or prepar­

ation, and would be published shortly. As to the question of the nationality or 

married women, she thought it could hardly be presented more briefly than had been 

dona in the previous pamphlet. So far as concerned fiscal laws, the Commission 

had noted that· no flagrant discrimination existed in that field and that the 

question therefore need not be pursued~ 

Miss Lurz {Brazil) thought that the proposal as set forth in the draft 

resolution was perfectly clear. The pamphlet must explain those problems which 

were covered by sections C and E of part I of the questionnaire. The problem of 

nationality had already been dealt with, and questions of educational opportunity 

did not fall within the field of . public law. 



E/CN.6/SR.lll 
page 15 

She agreed with the United Kingdom representative that the process of 

StDlllllarizing \'w'S.S by no ·means easy, but was sure •. that the. Secretariat would carry 

. it out satisfactorily, since it had both the experience and the ability to do that 

type of work. 

YJ.s~ SUTHERLAND (tJnitcd Kingdom) thought that if it was intended to 
' 

exclude any reference to education, that should be made clear in the draft resolutio~ 

Education was included in part I of the questionnaire. 

Mrs. GOLDMAN (United States of America) agreed with the United Kingdom 

representative. She ha'd, when speaking in the general discussion on the status . 
of women in public law, referred to the great interest ~aken by the United States 

of America in the problem, a.nd had hoped that the p?.Inphlet IPight have dealt \'lith 

tiscal law, including such aspects as reduction of income-tax for uorking women 

etc. 

Mrs. GRINBERG-VINAVER, Secretary to the Com.'IIi.ssion, explained that so 
• 

far as concerned the question of fiscal laws, to which section F of the question­

naire referred, the stu~ had not been brought up to date for the present session, 

since the resolution adopted at the fifth session related only to sections C and E 

of part I of the questionnaire. 

Mrs. GOLDMAN (United States of America), Miss PELETIER (Netherlands) 

and Miss LUTZ (Brazil) withdrew the final cia.use of the third paragraph, beginning 

at the 'llt'Ords "with particular attention to". 

Mrs. POPOVA (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) did not consider that 

the third para.graph should be thus amended. Many representatives had stated that 

insufficient information was available on the part playod by women in gove~aent 

service. She presumed that was why the sponsors of the draft resolution had 

originally made the text explicit on that point. 

The CHAI~i appreciated the anxiety of the Chilean representative to 

avoid requesting the publication of a pamphlet which would merely cover the same 

ground as the er .. rlier one. A study on the question of nationality wus in course 

of preparation, and it would be desirable to await the results of the fourth 

session of the International Law Commission before asking the Secretariat to 

prepare a fresh pamphlet. As to fisc.:1l la'vs, the preliminary studies on that 

question had not yet been completed. Accordingly, the only nn.tcrial suitable for 



E/CN.6/SR.lll 
pa.ge 16 

s~ry reproduction in a pamphlet at that moment was the replies of gove~cnts 

to the questions contained in st:ctions C and E of p3.rt I of the qUestion, aire on 

the legal status and treatment of women. 

Mrs. NOVIKOVA (Byelorussian Soviet So~ialist Republic) wos also opposed 

· to the third paragraph being amended. 

Further, she considered that, since it was ad~tted in the first paragraph 

th~t discrimination against women existed, explicit reference should bv made tv 

the various grounds on which discri.mi.na tion could be bnsed, nu.m.cly, sex, race 

an~ religion. The inclusion of those words would serve as a guide to the authors 

of the proposed pamphlet. 

She would therefore propose the :Lnsertion of the words 11 on account of sex, 

race and religion" after the words 11 against ·women11 in the first line.of the first 

paragraph and in the third line of the second paragraph, and the inse~ion of the 

words "against women on account of sex, race c.nd religion" after the woro 
11 discrimination11 in the fifth ·line of the third p:lrc.graph, the final clause of 

that paragraph being retained~ 

Miss surHERLJ.~TI (United Kingdom) supported the deletion of the final 

clause of the third pr.ragr2.ph. As to the amendments proposed by the representa­

tive of the Byelorussirn Soviet Socialist Republic, she would point out that 

governments had not been ~sked to give information on discr~nination on grounds 

of race or religion. That subject hnd not been included in the questionnaire, 

~d it was impossible to de~l in the pamphlet with problems which had not been 

studied. She had been struck by the fact that in listing th0 various forn1s of

discrimin~tion, ~he Byelorussian representative had not included discrimin~tion 

on grounds of political opinion. 

Replying to the CHAIRl,iAN, Hrs. NOVIKOVA (Byelorussian SoviGt Socialist 

Republic) agreed that her amen~ents should b~ put to the vote as a whole. 

Mrs. FIGUEROA (Chile) enquired whether the Gomnd.ssion possessed any 

informntion at all on discrimination on the grounds of race, nationality or 

religion. 

Mrs. GRINBERG-VINAVER, Secretary to the Commission, repli0d that the 

Secretari~t hnd no information on those forms of discr~ination. 

The CHAIRMAN pointed out th~t the C~idssion was not authorized by its 

terms of reference to call for information on discriminatory measurus ag~inst men 



E/CN,6/SR.lll 
page 17 

and women alike, but merely on those discriminatory measures that affected women 

alone. 

Mrs. NOVIKOVA (Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic) said that the 

Commission was well aware o! the fact that there was discrimination against women 

on grounds of race and religion. Surely it would be good to ensure that the 

documents issued under the aegis of the Commission reflected existing circum-

stances. 

Miss KALIN~iSKA (Poland) requested that the vote on the Byelorussian 

amendments be taken by roll-call. 

A vote was taken by roll-call. 

The Dominican Republic, having been drawn by lot by the Chainnan, was called 

upon to vote first. The result of the voting was as follows: 
. 

in favour: Poland, Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, 

Against: 

Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic. 

Dominican Republic, FrMce, Netherlands, 

New Zealand, Pakistan, United Kingdom, United 

States of America, Brazil, China, Cuba. 

Abstaining: Iran, Burma, Chile. 

The Byelorussian amendments to the joint draft resolution on the status of 

women in public law were rejected by 10 votes to J,'with 3 absten~ions. 

Mrs. FIGUEROA (Chile) said that she had abstained from voting not on 

the ground that questions of discrimination did not come within the scope of a 

publication of the Commission on the Status of Women, but because the Secretariat 

had no information on the subject covered by the Byelorussian· amendments. 

Mrs. GOLDMAN (United States of America) said that if the various forme of 

discrimination were to be enumerated, discrimination on account of political 

opinion should be mentioned. 

It was agreed that the final clause of the third paragraph. beginning with 

the words "with pa,rticulnr p.ttention to 11 , should be deleted. 

Tho oint draft resolution on the status of women in blic law E CN.6 
1 Rev.l) was adopted, as amended, by 13 votes to none, with 3 abstention2• 

1) For full text of the joint draft resolution as adopted, see the report of the 
Commission on its sixt.h session (E/2208 :.. E/CN, 6/204), ~ragraph 44. 



E/C!! , 7/E3P.~lll 
1~ags 18 

l·fl-s. GOI.DHAN (United States .or Amer ica) said that at a pr avi o'lio P.teothigg 

t.h~ Sovi et. Union r epresentnt.ive had stated that the Soviet Uru.on Government had 

rep.U.ed t o the qu<Jrstionnaire on t he legal eta.tua of l'fomen. She (Hra. C--o!.c.im.a.n) 

had b een unable t o f ind cny in.form.!'.).tion on that point. Yet an ar.arniri.~ticn o.f th0 

docu:uents crhm.-~d t hnt the Governr:tent of the Soviet _Union had indeed replied on 

education, f i scal law and civil liberties. 

The Soviet Union representative had, at the 108th meetL~g, challenged~~~ 

accuracy of her ( ~~s. Goldman's) quotation from the Soviet Union ~presentative ' s . 

statement about tho position of '\":omen in the Soviet Union in public le.•t~. In 

discussing maternity ·.,.:elfare, l'.trs~ · Popova had said that if a woman were' pregr...ant 

she could not be directed to a job. Before referring to that statement she 

(l!rs. Goldman) l'l.ad taken very great care to secure an accurate translation of tho 

\\"'rds used. She regretted the fact the.t the Soviet Union representative had 

thought fit to stoop to personal abuse. The United States Government had give~
. . 

full infonnation on the status of women in public law, and she had accordingly 

r efrained from herself making lengthy comments on the subject, in order to ~aye 

the Co~~ssion'a time. 

Mrs. POPOVA (Union of Soviet Socilllist Republics) said that she "tms not 

}XP.f~red to reply thsra nnd then to the slander just uttered by the United Stat~s 

!:'::.:presentative, and accordingly reserved her right to give an appropriate 

~A?lanation later. 

3. EQUAL PAY FOR EQUAL WORK FOR }1m AND WOMEN WORKERS {item 8 of the agenda) 

Report on the action tnken by the International Labour Conference a.t its 
34t.h session held in June 1951 (E/CN .6/179, E/CN .• 6/L.69, E/CN.6/L. 70) 

.Z..!rs .. GR!NBERG-VINAVER, Secretary to the Commission, submitt~Jd the 

report (E/CN.(;/179) prep!l.red by the Secretary-General -of the Uz:ited Nations on ·tha 

proceedings of, and action taken by, the International Labour Conference at itf! . . 

34th session on the question of equal pay for equal work for men and women workera. 

The Secretary-General had thought it advisable to prepare a report on that . 

S\:bjcct in order to c;seist the Commission in its study of a particularly dif ficult 

and technical question. The report described firs~ the proceGdings of the 

Com:rrd .. ttee on Equal Remuneration, then the action taken by the plenary Conference, 
. . 

and f inally thc various positions taken in the debate in plenary Conference by t he 

representati ves of employers, workers and governments. 



The Seol.·etary...{}enaral had -thought it uocful to annex to his rep:>rt the 

t exts of the Convention n.t various stages of its prepara;tion 11 nlltlely: the d:t•af't 

subtrd.tted by the Intern:1tiona.l Labour Office to the 34th International l-aboux· 

Conference, the draft submitted ~o that Conference by the Committee on Equul 

Remuneration, and the text finally adopted by the Conference. The texts were 

presented in tabular form to facilitate compariaonJ and in order to set out 

cleorly the successive nmendments made to them. The texts of the recommendations 

~-ere presented in the same way. 

1-fiss FAIRCHILD (Intemntional Labour Organisation), speaking at the 

invitation of the GHAim•UuV, said that copies of the International Labour Office 

Bulletiria containing the Convention concerning equal remmteration for men and women 

'WOrkers for work of equal vo.lue and recommendations agreed upon during the 3/,.th 

International Labour Conference were available for members of the Commission. 

The International J..abour Office regarded the adoption of the Convention by the 

Conference as only the first stc.ge in its efforts to secure equal remuneration for 

men and wo.;·nen \'torkers for work of equal value. The next stage would be the 

ratification of the Convention, and members of the Commission, as wall as the non­

governmental organizations represented at the present session, were asked to 
' 

regard that as a task for them. The International Labour Office would bo glad to 

assiot them eo far as it lay in its power to do so. 

One merit of ~"le Convention lay·:i.n article 2, which provided that the 

principle of equal remuneration might be applied by means of national la.\15 or 

reaulations; by means of recognized machinery for wage determination; by means of 

collective agreements between employers and workers; or by a combination of all 

three methods. Those provisions were intended to make the administrative appli­

cation of the _principle in countries with different constitutions easier than had 

hitherto been possible with international labour conventions. 

Mrs. GOLDMAN (United States of America) submitted a draft resolution 

(E/CN06/L.69) commending the Convention and the implementation of the p~inciple it 

proclaimed. 

· l-1rs. FIGUEROA (Chile) reserved the right to submit certain general 

comments on item 8 of the ~genda at a later st~ge. At present sho would confine 

her remarks to the United States· draft resolution. 



E/CN.6/SR.lll 
plge 20 

At its .34th sessi"On .the Intamationa.). Laoour Conterenee had adopted a 

Convention, which had been signed and ratified by most of the States Members ot 
tho International Labour Organisation. She ~herefore thought it advisable to 

use in any resolution which the Commission on the Status of Women might adopt . . 
on the subject the terminology used in the title of the Convention, namely: "equal 

· remuneration for men ru1d women workers for work of .eqU.:J.l value". 

The question of terminology had already been rnised during the discussions 

at the thirteenth session of the Economic nnd Social Council on the relevant section 

of the Comnission'a report on its fifth session. The Chilean delegation had on 

that occasion stressed that it was essential not to confuse different concepts, 

for eDmple, the terms "PilY'' and 11rer.lunera.tion11 , · the latter of which covered not 

only pay proper, but also various benefits and allowances in respect of which tho 

treatment of men and wan.en might differ. 

SOine representatives had pointed out in the Council that the question of 

equal remuneration for men and woman did not arise in their countries, since most 

women workers were Uiliii.Orried and therefore did not receive family allowances. 

But at the ~esent session of the Commission tha United States r epresentative had 

stated that seven out of eight women at work in the United States of America were 

married. It would therefore appear that the information supplied to the Council 

had been erroneous. 

Similarly 1 the expression 11 equal work" did not mean tho same thing as 11work 

of' equal value". For instance, legislation providing for equal pay for equal 

~rk had been in force in Chile since 1925; but there was no eqtl'llity of pay in 

practice. Some work was done almost exclusively by women, and in that case no 

compo.rison was possible. The same applied in many other countries 1 and it 

frequently happened that women earned only 60 per cent of ,.mat men earnod for work 

of equal value. 

She had made those points in the hope that the United States representative 

would be prepared to ponder them and considor .the possibility of amending the 

wording of her draft resolution accordingly. 

Muss LUTZ (Brazil) regretted the tendency to substitute for the words 
11 equnl p<J.y for equal workn others that were less concise wd less accurate. It 

was rn.ore difficult to define remuneration than pay, and work of equal value was a. 

more nebulous concept than equal work. MorGover, the latter required an ~valuatiQa 



of work which would. certainly be fallible, and JXlSSibl.y prejudiced. She would 

prefer to see ~11 subjective el~nents elimin~ted, and to revert to the use of tba' 

simple and accurate phrase which h~d been current since the inceptio~. ~f th~ 

campaign to ensure equal ~Y for equal work for men and women. In her own 

country, both in the government service and in ingustry an:i business, po.y lfl\8 

associated with the job, and the holder, whether male or female, was paid ·the 

sarito. ra. te. 

Mrs. NOVIKOVA (Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic) regarded .the 

question of equal pay for equal wo:rk for men and women workers as one of the most

vitcl. before the Commission. The duty of the United Nations to ensure tho. 

universal regocnition of that principle derived from the Charter iteelt, a:rtd i'i
particular from Preamble thereto, Discrimination against women in matte'ra 6t·,t

I . 

resulted in a decline in the status and econ01. i:c value of women workers, ~d 

provided a means of reducing the status and wages of men workers ~s well, ~ile 

intm1sifying the deterioration in the standard of living 1n capital1s~ countrie& 
and swelling employers' profits. In spite of the insistent demands ot th' 

workers of the world, in many countries little had been done to implement !ne
principle in question. United Nations roport.s .showed that in' s~~ral. cOut\tries

women were still denied access to certain professions. Entployel'S and trade 

unions continued to reserve ontry to certain tra:des for men alone, and in a n~l~:;

of countries the remuneration received by women was aa n: .. ·h as 50 per cent l.ower 

than that roccived by men doing the s~~e work. In the United States of America, 

for e~~ple, only nine States had applied the principle of equal pay for e~l 

work, and. even in those nine States ~tations were imposed on its application, 

such as that the principle should apply only to women in industry or only to women . 
in the non-commercial professions. Despite constant pressure,• the United States 

Congress had failed to pass federal legislation to compel recognition of the 

principle. 

Similarly, in the United Kingdom the workers had not yet succeeded in 

ensuring application of the principle. The Government had ~dmitted its justice, 

but <:ln.imed that economic .::nd financio.l conditions were such as to prevent its 

implementD.tion for the time being. In that country, women were still denied 

access to professional stn.tus in mining, forestry, banking nnd other careers. 



E/CN.6/SR.lll 
page 22 

In Belgium, Sweden, F~-nce, Australia ~~d Can~da woman b~re still denied thei~ 

rights to the same pay as thc.t cn.rned -by men doing the srune l'tork, and in Trust &ld 

Non-self~ove~~g Territories 1~0men were almost entirely denied their econ~~c 

rights.A ~-arl.et.ycf pretexts were invoked for that remissness, such as fino.nci~l 

nnd economic difficulties, and even the disadvantages of employing lro:men, but in 

\~ew of the vast amounts being spent on armaments in the Clpitalist countries, and 

the continual increase·in the profits of employers there, it was clear that thoee 

excuses were not valid. 

\'far preJ):'lrations in capitalist countries were causing a deterioration in the · 

finrurrcial position of women workers. A high proportion of the una~ployed in 

the United States of America and in the United Kingdom were women, though 

govcnL~snt statistics on the point could not be relied on, as married women were 

not regarded us unemployed and were not eligible for unemployment benefits. 

In the Soviet Union and the People's Da~ocracies, on the other hand, the 

principle of equal pay for equal work for men and women \'ffi.S fully implemented. 

'rhc Constitution of the Byalorussian Soviet Socialist Republic m.ade specifie 

provision for equal rights of men and women in economic and public life, and 

contained guarantees which ensured that the principle would be honoured in practice. 

Of those employed in industry, 45 per cent ~~re women, all of whom enjoyed their 

right to the same pay as men for the same '~rk. It was therefore obvious that the 

Laplementation of th~t principle ~dS possible for all governmentB, whatever their 

org:mizational structure, and the United Nations should ensure its recognition in 

all countries, whether or not States Nembers of the United Nations. 

Although aware of the sit~Ation, the Co~ssion on the Status of Women had 

been cont~1t to act as an Dr.passive observer. It had rejected specific proposals 

put forward by the Soviet Union delegation and had referred the rr~tter to the 

International Labour Organisation. That Organisation, after three ye~rs of 

lengthy debate, had adopted a Convention ~t.dch, on examination, proved to be ~ak 

t>.nd inaffective. Article 2 of the Convention n.s finally adopted at the 34th 

International Labour Conference provided only that signatory States should "promote 

~d •••• ensure the application to all workers of the principle of equal 

re:nun~:ra.tion ••• ". Thus 1 so long as governments p1•omoted tho idea, they would 

not be re~uired to put it into pra?ticc. 



E/CN.6/SR.lll 
page 23 

· Similarly, article 7 weakened the \'mole Convention by making it possible for 

.signatory States not to appl;v its pro\1.sions to any or all p.~rts of their terri­

~oriese A convention so flexible and vague w~s clearly not designed to bring 

a'bout early implementation of the principle of equal pay for equ~l work. 

The position rema.:i.ned as it had been six years earlier, and the Com."llission 

could no longer shirk its duty to make constructive and positive rcco~~endations 

'i'fhich would ensure prompt .md effective action by governments. Horeover, it 

should recommend that the draft International Covenant on Human Rights should 

provide for the recognition of the principle of equal pay for equal work for men 

and women workers. For that reason, the Byelorussian delegation had submitted a 

draft resolution (E/CN.6/L.70) for the Commission's consideration. 

Mrs. GOLDMAN (United States of America) said that ;:,he Convention of the . 
L~tcrnational Labour Organisation embodied 1nany of the ideas defined by Mary 

Anderson, a former Director of the United States Women's Bureau. Miss Anderson 

had come to the United States of Amcri ca as a S'tredish immig·:-ant, and had first 

been employed as a domestic servant in 18S9. Among the views expressed in a 

book l!iss Anderson had written was the opinion that day-nurseries should be only a 

temporary measure, and that no econoLdc pressure should be brought to bear on 

r;tarried women to rn.-:.:.ke them both home-maker and wage-earner. Hary' Anderson had 

helped to establish a labour code for women in the United States of i!..rnerica, which 

laid down, inter alia, the principle that the wage rate should be based on the 

job and not on the sex of the worker. 

As to the phraseology used in her draft resolution, she agreed with the 

Brazilian representative about the value of the phrase 11 equal pay for equal 

lfork11 • In the draft resolution she had submitted to the Commission, she had 

mostly stuck to that phrase, and had used the phrase "equal remuneration for men 

and wo!nen for work of equal value" only when making express reference to the 

Convention. 

The United States Government took particular satisfaction in the provisions 

for applying the principle of .equal pay, <lS laid dmm in article 2 of the 

Convention. Sub-paragraph 2(c) of that article, which provided for the appli­

cation of the principle by meu.ns of collective agreements between employers and 

i'I'Orkers, '~"'uld enc..ble that to be done through collective bargaining, which was 



E/CN.6/SR.lll 
p:l.ge 24 

~dely practised in her countr,y. 

She regretted that the Byelorussian and Soviet Union Governments had not s~t 

representatives to the 34th International Labour Conference. The Polish 

reprusentative at that Conferenae had spoken many.times, a.nd had doubtless 

influenced the International Labour Organisation's final decisions. 

She noted ~~th interest that the workers' and employers' representatives at 

that Conference had shown· by a large majority their desire to preserve intact the

practice of collective bargaining. 

In conclusion, she expressed the view that where there was no freedom to . 
choose an occupation, there was little meaning in the term equality, except as 

equality in slavery. 

The meeting rose.at 1.35 p.m. 




